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CHAPTER I

IN~RroDUCTION

Purpoee

During the past one thousand years, and more especially
the last one hundred, mankind has made enoruious strides in
most of the elements of materiel civilization., The sciences
of chemistry, physics and biology and their applications
have changed entirely the poseibilities for raising the stan-
derd of living. There need be no more fear, for the present
at least, that there will be insufficient food, clcthing and
shelter so far as the means of production are concerned.

It has been estimated that man's efficiency in tre man-
ufacture of electric light bulbs has increased nine trousand
times since 1514, In the steel industry, tlie ircrease in
man's efficiency has been estimated at six hundred fifty times.
It has been estimated that the human labor needed for the
production of one bushel of wheat a hundred years ago was
about four days and thie has now been reduced to sbout four
minutes. These estimates may not be exact but, it cannot be
questioned that the increase in efficiency has been enormous.
Therefore, if people suffer for want of food, the trouble nmust
be in our soclal or political organizations and not in the
economic production of goods.

In stateljood, judicial procedure and social customs we
have moved very slowly, It is believed by sonre people that,

in judicial procedure, we are not far beyond the



Justinian Code : in our lawvs of inheritance ve nave
chaznred little frowm our feudal ancestors ¢ we still
recognize proverty rights above hunan richts. we
conegider labor as a comodity to be tourht and sold
ratl.er trian a co-operative arrangerent for more ef-

icient production,

fo

The adopticn of the Christian philosophy of the
brotherrood of man has been a valuable change yet, in
sore ways, cur svatem of charity seems less wise than
that of some earlier civilizations among vlrom there
vere smaller per centages of vhysical and riental sub-
noriiality and mote ecuitatle distridbution of goods.
If, by apovlyirg the s ume principlés to social
affairs as we have anplied to naterial afiairs, we
could make the sa.ie progress as has beep riade in ec-
cnonic afiairs, cur difficulties might vanish. But,
if social and political conditions are to iuprove, tlie
stimull for human behavior rmust be changed. For
social ronditions and social progress are determined
by the interacticns between man nnd his social and
vhiysical envircnuments. The individual consistis of a
physical mechanisr: capable of reactirg; to certain kinds
of stimulli; a more or less nerfect nervous systen;
certein horiones snd enzymes vihich interact with the
nervcus s8ysten and which reculate the metatdlic oro-

cesces therebty influencirng the vitality and erotions.
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All of these are, no doubt, influenced by heredity but
they are also influenced by food, temperature and, in
fact, 2l1ll physical and social conditions. ¥ach contact
between individuals and treir surroundings leaves an
imorint in the form of habit or ideal. Ve may cnly
hope to improve our social conditions by adjusting these
social contacts and physical conditions.

The community appears to be the primary and basic
unit of social organization and of economic production
and distribution. Communities are the units which supply
the stimuli for individual effort and fulfill the imed-
iate wants of the individual. It is chiefly the community
which is responsible for tle perpetuation of hab;ts,customs
and traditions. From the time the infant takes its first
breath until the aged forever érop the working tools of
life, the neighborhood and comimunity as well as the physical
surroundings; the hills and valleys,.the woods and plains,
buildings and streets, direct his thinking and acting or,
in other words, shape his life. And each word and act cf
his influences the surroundings.

The community sets the standard for home life; it de-
termines the amount and quality of school training; it de-
termines the social set-up which regulates the social con-

duct and kinds of recreation., The social traditions togethe?

with the location and natural resources determine the



vocations and all of these have a direct bearing on the
development of personalities., It is the corumnity to
a great extent, which decided the relative amount of joy
and sorrow, ¢f pleasure and pain of its members.,

If proper habits could be develcped in the young;
i1f the pressure for food, shelter, clothing and tze
other human desires could be equalized with the amount
of effort exerted; if the amount of sub-normality could
be decreased rather than increased; if a larger ver centace
could be employed in production and a uniformly larger
portion of time saved for self improvement and, if all could
learn to enjoy a reasonable amount of luxuries and con-
veniences of life, crime and poverty slould nearly or
quite disavpear and a uniformly high standard of 1life
be enjoyed., It is these vroblems which lend so much in-
terest and importance to a study of the growth, nature,
orcanization and the causes of the evils, mal-adjustments
and decay of com:unities,

The area selected for this study is one in which
many of the pioneer settlers are still active and
where the transition from a lumbering to a farm-village
type of community is still taking place. It, therefore
illustrates many of the processes wnich older comwmnities

do not. It is immuch more nearly isolated from outside



influences than the average corimunity or has been until
the very recent introduction of radios and coruion use of
automobiles; rowever, many rorse dravn vehicles are still
seen on the streets, In recent years thre younger gener-
ation have tended to emigrate from the commnity until
the depression came which ras caused some to return from
the cities,

Sanderson has defined a rural community as :" A rural
community consists of the social interactions of the people
and their institutions in a local area on which they 1live
in dispersed farmsteads and in a hamlet or village which
forms the center of their activities." This is the sense
in which the term "cormmunity" has been and will continue

to be used in tris tresis., (1)

(1) Sanderson, Dwight "The Rural Comamunity" 1932
pace 481
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Location

Prescott Comumunity is located in the nortrneastern
part of ilickigan, sbout fifty miles north from Bay City
end twenty miles inland from Saginaw Bay and lake luron
as shown on LIAP I of _ichigan. The boundary of the ser=-
vice area of Prescott villare is shown on AP III. The
high scliool, banking and sale of produce areas agrec very
closely and were, theref re used to form a composite
which is the one shown on the map. The widest divergence
in the three areas was found in the northern part of the
cormuunity as that part sends very few pupils to any high
schiool, In attempting to use the sale of merchandise as
a criterion for determining boundary there seemned to be
some confusion., The lists of regular customers were se-
cured from the merchents and 1t looked as though they
had been a little over zealous in claiming customers.
Then, too, the Weinberg Company has stores in both Pres-
cott and West Branch and it was difficult to distinguish
the customers of each, The churches seemed to be neigh-
borhood centers rather tinan comuunity centers. So, for
these reasons, neither merchandizing nor churches were
used in determining the comumunity btoundary.

The comunity as described includes the territory
within a radius of five to twelve miles from the village
of Prescott which is the comwunity center. It is bounded

on the west by the Rifle River which separates it from



West Branch Cormumunity. On the south it is separat.d
from Standish Comuimunity by a deep ravine vwhich 1is bor-
dered by some wild, Lilly land. On the east and north
there are no geographic barriers bdt tle areas are di-
vided between Prescott and Whittemore Com.munities.,

It is8 a farm-village comumunity with Prescott Village
as the service center, Three miles to tlie south of
Prescott Village and within the comuwunity lies the ham-
let of faple Ridge with a general store, a garage, tlree
crturches and a primary school with one teacler. The
nearest villase outside the comunity is “hittemore
which lies a li*ttle north of east and is nine miles dis-
tant. At one time it would liave been considered &as part
of Prescott Comvmunity. The development of gypsum in-
dustriee near there hLas caused it to beco.e incorpcrated
and to establish an accredited schiocl so that it is now
about the size of Prescott., Vest Branch, tre county
seat of Ogenaw County, lids twenty five miles to the
northwvest of Prescott. Tawas anc Fast Tawas are north
east on Lake Iluron and about tlirty miles away. Sixtecn
riles south of Prescott is Sterling and five niles south
east of there is Standish, tie county sezt of Arenac,
Zoth of the last two mentiored towns are on the trunk

line vaverient vrich extends from 'Jest Branch to DPay City.
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This com:unity would be considered +vithin the sub-
metropolitan area of Bay City since its merchants are
supnlied witr gecods chiefly Trou violesalers there, its
bankx is closely aszociated with tie Bay City vanks and
tnne Bay City dally newspapver is read in a luarce proportion
of the homes of the cousunity. A few of tre citizens of the
comnunity transact business in Detroit. Tunis is especially
true of the shipners of live stock and other farmn products.
Quite a large crivunt of such produce is trucked to Detroit.
The Detroit daily newspapers rank next in iniportance in =the
community to those frow Zay City. Until the closing of tlie
Detroit Banks, tiie Prescott btanks cerried credits there.
“rom these facte it would be inferred that Detroit forus

tlie metrovolitan center for the comrwnity of Prascott.
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The followinz tukle slhicws thie noanulaticon of tie tovne

siive vi.olly or partly within te cem unity as dravn on la»
II, tec etner vith *re Ifractionsl parts lying vitrin the
corrunity, Tle Tractiorns used in deteriining “re ponulaticn
of t¥e comrwvnity zre tle sziie as the territorial fractiorns
excent in Yills townshion wvrere :iost of tie neownle live in

tre eas“e m mart around tre lzkes and ir ‘ason tovnsikip ~trern

)

th»~ ponula*icn is more dense in tle rortiweste:n nart,

TABLS I

PCPULATICH CT Wild CO: ULITY BY TOVHLIIPS.

Tevnehin limae Populaticn “racticral Part Population
Census 1¢2N Includieqd Yitiin Coul.,
Richland &30 All ~gn

llason 506 3/4 497

Clayton 625 1/2 312

~ilis 1.9 4/5 100
Reno 333 1/¢ 41
Burleisn 533 1/4 1233
Tosan 291 2/3 194

Churcrill 457 1/¢ 57

Pill 214 1/5 52
Total for Community 2,07%

As noted elseviere, t:e southeustern portion of Cgemaw
counity posses tle richest soil found anyvhere in tle County.
In swite of *his fact, the open country sncwed a st a'y de-

cline ir population from 1510 to 1%30. DBut trnis vas also true
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of al® tovwnghips in tl.e county, tie loss reaching as ri:-h as
84 per cent in Foster Tovnship in tle nortiwest part of tle
county. The loss in “dchland Tovmship was 23,6 percent or
slightly over 2C0 peonle. It is difficult to say just to
wnat extent tliese lcsses lave been made up since 193C by
people returring from the cities. A few nevw ro..es lrave teern
built; several of the resort cottzyies neur tie laxes iave
been use! o3 pernmanent dwellirngs and afew spandoned buildings
rave been fitted un for dwellirgs.

'iost of the pionner residents of Prescott Com aurity ca e
from the southern vart of “ichisen and Trom lew York State.
They are mostly of Scotch, Tnslish =nd German extraction and
occupy the ricre fertile farms in the southeastern portion of
tre comuunity. The later imidgrants are Itallan, Polish and
unsarian and occupy tlhie poorer land in the western porticn
of trhe comuuni ry, especially tnat part in 2ills Township.
2ost of tlie peonle of tie village are the pioneers or their
sons and daughiters. Short bicgrephies of soue of tlhiem are
given under the topics of "¥arly Set<lers" and “"Leade cshin",
All in tle villaze are native Americens. The 1930 Census of
tiie United Ctates sliows 33,9 per cent of the fauilies of
Cgemaw County to have foreign boern parents and Prescott Co.i.auniy
protably averases zbout tre smte in trat respect as tle couniy.

Trhe neonle are, as a rule, peacectle, ccntented and
havoy in their homes and com.unity. Tven tlie south ZTuropeun
imigrants, includirz some with criminal records, all appear
to te cheerful, friendly neighbors ~nd loyul to the United

/
pd



States trouh trey s8till harbor resentriert and vindictiveness
toward the governments of their rative countries. It would
seernt thiat relezse from arbitrary coersicn by organized society
and the ability to enjoy hrome life and tre fr.its of their
labor have tended to destroy at least so.e of the anti-socigl

sentiment



Preccott Village

lost of thre business section of Prescott illare is
located around the corners of an east and west street and
and ocne leading northward from tiat rrne, These two streets
are naved through tie business section tut tre side streets
are either rravel or dirt. The streets are electric lighted
by incandescent bulbs susncnded over tnie streest corners. The
village is partly provided with concrete side vealrs ticuzh
sonle of t:em are in a bad state of repair,

The business vortion consists riainly of two depart..ent
stores, cne grocery, two barter siioons, a pool room, a siice
store and a swall wood bank building all located on tre
nortn and sou*h street, The taree gareres, drug store,btank
and post office are lccated along the east snd west street.
The depot is a square tvo storied wood btuilding, standing a
little to *iie west of iain street and north of tlhe business
district. The unner story of tre devot contains living roowms
and 18 occunied as a dwelling, Trere 12 ulso an abandoned
lod:re kall standing on main street vwhich is used ty both
scrnonl and ccemunity basket ball teams for practice and
exliibition ganes.

S

If you were to visit® the village cocn a suuier after

w

noon you would firnd tlie stireets deserzed, Tie business
men wvwould te resting in the siiade of the buildings or

standing in groups of tvo or three visitirg. After svpner,



however, tic villase tazkes on a diflferent apnearence.
Fenecially on Laturday evenings tle gtreets are filled
witk ehopwers, ctlopning here ond <liere to ireet and to
visit witz <leir reigivors. Autouiobiles line the streets
on boti gicdes fro: siortly before sun dorn until about
nidniglt. There are outoimobiles of nearly all izkes and
ages. Scattered amonyg trem are a few lorse dravm vehicles,
varving in s"vle from the Irish riocdel of tvo vleeled cart
to lumver vacon, On pnleasant days in tl.e winter, mnany
farrers snend the afterncen in tre villare but, a&s coon
as spring work ve;jins, nearly all tne sionpning is done
evenirigs,

VWViile Prescott suppnlies tie com tnity with wmost of
its needs, a few of ti.e people Jjourrey to Bay City to
secure tnings a little :.ore Tusiilcnavle or for supplies
rnrot kent in Prescott stores. A few go there for professicnal
ce:vices and a few go for entertainient,

SJince tre villare is unincorporataa, tiic jovernuwent of
Aicnlard Townsnip takes tre nlace of a city or villa e
governiient, Tle tovnsiip pays for tne stre<t li Its of tlie

villace. Tie strecsis zand side val s :-ve Tee~n vuved by th-

(0]
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tovnshtin., And the Consumer r Comnary sell electricity
under a franchise ranted bty the tovmsi:iip.
Of the €50 veonle irn Ricenlurd Tornchiv =s ;iven by ‘le

12°0 “ensus of tre "mited States, abtout 200 live within



wrat miglht te consicdered tie villasze liwmits T

A Se -e as..egreq
valuation of tie tovnsiidn, incl:
127 farms of tle tovnship, is & (20,785,070

indettesrness is % 13,700.0% . & 5,000,100 of the irebt-

ecness was recently incurred 1o renlace sorie of tl.e tovn-

<

glip's money viidch was lost in tlie bLark Tailure,
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Surfzce and Soil

The surface of this section is covered entirely
=ith glacial ‘rift matericl, The relief is sinie=
what v.ri:d but there are no greut élevations, most
of the surfuce bein.r between 730 and 1.50 feet above
sea level and fr i 350 t~ 700 fe>t zbove the surfuce
of Lake Huron. The northwestern portion of Ogemaw
county is more dry and sandy +vhile the southwestern
part contains consicderable swaamy and nuckl, land,
A stri> extending from tre northeastern vortion of
the county through the central and south central
parts is aore v-ried or snotted and tre sogtheas—
tern p-rt of the ccunty is mostly a loam vith a

"

clay sub-go0il end is, trer~fore, the moct suit-ble
nortion for f rming. The rest ~f the comunity
extending into Iosce and Arenac counties correse-

nonds very closely to the southcastern nortion of

Ogenaw., (1)

(1) J. 0. Veatch, et., al. Soil Survey of Ogemaw
County Of Michigan (1928) Page 903.



The Rifle River crosses Ogemaw County from north to
south, a little west of the center while the AuGres
drains the eastern portion of the county. The Pres-
cott Comunity is well supplied with lakes the larg-
est ¢f which is Sage Lake, The lakes are fairly well
stocked with fish and are used guite extensively as
summer resorts. Liost of the region was once covered
with dense forests of hard maple and beech or with
mixtures including white pine, hemlock and some Nore
way pine.

The swamps which occupy nearly twenty per cent
of the area, were filled with spruce, balsam, fir
and tamarack. But, in about 1872, lumbering began and
now what is not cleared for cultivation, is covered
with burned over slashings, small growth Jack pine,
low blue berries, sweet fern, bracken, scrub oak,
poplar and beach, It 18 estimated by the Department
of Agriculture Soil Survey (1) that only twelve to
fourteen per cent of this cut-over land of Ogenaw
County has been cleared of second growth brush and
stunios for farming purposes.

Lumbering has entirely ended and only agriculture
and the occupations closely acsociated with it are
practiged in the community though gypsum products are

produced ten or twelve miles to the east.

(1) J. 0, Veatch, et. al, Soil Survey of Ogemaw County,
Michigan 1928 .



Iearly encloeing trne com aunity on the north uond west is
a governmient owned forest vrich is centinually being ilunroved
by settings of trees, extensicons of fire lines and iuprove-
rient of roede. Tills gives eniployiiont to several pecnle in
Prescott Coummity., Ilwuch of t*e ernloyient in tenporary and
uncertain but a few find steady erployment. These forests also
furnish refuge for game.

The folloving cuo*ation from a grovernment rewport shovs

the locationrn, size and condition of the forest,

"Ozemmavw Forest, situated in Cgemaw, Roscomion
Gladwin and Arenac counties, contains witliin
its toundaries 257,340 acres of which 125,192
acres or 4) % is hreld by the state. Tiie plan-
tations wrich have teen set tirus far total
10,1C1 acres. rirelines to the nuinber of 140
niiles have been built., The head quarters is
four and one half miles nortn of West Branch
on the lackirew division of the llichigan Central
which bisects the forest. This unit is served
by trunkline rigrways .-77, !1-£5, 11-20 and 1f-66."(1)

<
<

(1) :ichigan Departiient of Conservation, Fifth Biennial
Report 19:29-30,
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Climate

The nearest veatiier observatory is located at Vest
Branch vhere *lhe average annual temperature is £ degrees
Takrenreit and tle meman annual precipitation is 29.59 inches.
The winters are long and cold but t}i» sumier seasons of
116 days between frosts,on the average, seem sufficient to
mature the crops, The precipitation is quite evenly distri-
buted throu~hout tre year trough there is e€lightly more
during the snrin: and sumner than for tlie rest of the year.
The averaze snow fall at Yest Branch is given as 51 inches
but at Prescott there ras been very little for tihe past two
vears. 01ld residents claim that there seems to be a strip
of territory extending nearly nortieast and southwest, in-
cluding Prescott Comrmnity, in which the snow fall is less

than in the territory farther from tle lzke.

Transpnortation and Communication

The older set‘lers told of a tine when trey followed
the Indizn trails from the older settlements in what is
now Arenac County to Johnson Lake on fishing trips. Thecse
seem to have been avout the only routes of travel until
about 1870 vren logsring roads began to te built,

The first railroad vas built by a lir., l'ale but, uvpon
his financial failure, tre roa& was taken over by C. .

Prescott and Company witn C. ¥. Prescott as sanager. This



company also failed and tiie property was taken over by lLir,
Prescott late in the seventies, In 1fE1 the first passengers
were carried over tris road as far as Ga:p Six +hich was
located vhere Prescott Village nov stends. The 102d vas
socn sold to Goverrnor Alger vho wvidened it to standa.d gaie
and, in 1888, extended it to Alger Village vhere it :et the
Hichigan Central Railroad. The bridze wrere tile railroad
crossed tie rifle River was seventy feet atove tlie bed of
tre river and, threrefore, difficult to naintain. So for
this and, no doubt, cther reasons, tre road tetween Alger
and Prescott was abandoned, leaving Prescott at the end
of the road. I'ow the rain line of the Metroit and llackinaw
Railroad runs from Bay City to Alpena and the road to
Prescott remains as a spur frow lationzal City. The road
sends in one train per day and one a;ent tends the station
at Ynittesiore and also tle one at Prescett. lie lives at
nittenore vwhere lie spends tre afternoons and spends tie
forenoons at Prescott.

The first telephone line to be built into the community
was constructe< from Turner to Prescott by ir. Joseph Cluly
in 1600, The first telepnone pole set in the village still
orna.cents Main s‘reet though the lire vas sold to the Bell
Telephone Company and later abandoned. A short time after
the first line came here, a local line was built by about
thirty subscribers vho sold out there intercsts to Iir, Simon

Champaifne in 1915. The number of patrons remained between



thirty and thirty five ™iring thle twelve years of .ir. Cham-
vaigne's ownersrip. This line is still ir operation under
the ownership and manajement of rs, Thompson and with very
little chance.

In 1910 ~rother farrer's line vas organized wiich now
has about one hundred fifty subscribers and :aintains a cen-
tral in the parsorage of tle County lLine Church about thirec
miles from Prescott “illace.

The Finger Line which was started in 13915, extends vwest-
vard from the village accommodating forty families., The Logsan
Line extends northward from the village into Logan Tovnship
and serves thirty five fa:iilies., All of these lines are co-
ordinated throu:h the Prescott Central and are trhere con:ected
with the Bell System through Tawvas.

The rates on these lines are one dollar per month and
a toll charse of five cents for three minute calls by anyone
not a member of a subscriber family. The Prescott Cen*ral
receives two dollars per phone per year Jrom each of the sub-
sidiary companies for the services rendered. Asurvey report
by {ichigan State College, Devurtment of Sociology, shows that
the per centa e of farm hoines of Ogemaw County having telephones

is 42.5 .
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This study is primarily of tre case stufy type by a
resident observer, the author havihg resided in the coriunity
for three years. There is, however, some historical and
so i@ statistical material used, l!'ost of-tlhe information hras
been obtained from conversations with o0ld pioneers and otHer
residents, from diaries, public records and othef data cone—
tributed by residents of the com.munity.

The sutject maitter and manrer of arrangement follow
somevhat those of some of the-si.idilar surveys 1ade in lew
York State. .lore of the historical tack ground has been
given as it is believéd that present conditions can only
be understoocd in the light of such history. There is no a
attempt in the present thesis to riake a comparison of village
and farm population as ras been done in several of the other
surveys., It is roped that some light may bé shed on existing
conditions and tlat some problems may be shown, together
with their causes, While some remecdies may be suggested, it
is not roned to furnish remedies for all of their socisal,
political and economic puzzles,

In addition to the above named sources the following
questionaire was given to one hundras fifteen pupils of
high school an? gramuar grades. The answers wer= collected
and checked, In several cases answers vere given by two or

more pupils from the same home. These were corpared and,
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in each case, the one wvhich se=«iled ti.e riost complete and
definite was retained and the others were discarded. In
such cases tie different reports from thke sane femily com-
pared favorably in 1most instances though some estimates di-
ffered as in the number of days spent in hunting and fishing
or the number of social functions attended during the year.
Seventy nine lists of answers were retzined and used in the
thesks.

Since the questionaire reached only 79 families and
only those revresented in schosl, it is probatle that .the
data may not be entirely typical for all purvoses yet, as
to land ownership, size of farms, kinds and arount of re-
creation and, in fact, for most phases of the cormimnity it
se~m8 fairly adequate. The size of families may be sone=-
what larger when compared to those of the whole com:mnity
as those with no children or with only very young children
were not represented, There is, slso, a possibility that
the standard of living would range a little high as very
few puvils come from the nortliern part of the comuunity
where it might be expected that there would rnot be as many

home convenierces,
Questionaire

1. ame.

2. Number in family,.



13.
14,

15.
16.

17.

18,

19,

20.

21,

22,

Zducation of father.

Education of mother.

Occupation of father.

Political offices Leld by father during year.

Size of farm owned.

Owner, renter or lebtorer on farm,

Number of rooms in home.

Do you have electricity in the lome ?

Do you have a bath room ?

Do you hLave a radio ?

What musical instruments do you have in the home ?
Do you have an automobile?

Do any of the fauily belong to a church ?

Fow many church meetings vere attendec by one or
more menbers of the family during the year ?

To how many fraternal societies do one or more
meibers of the family belong ?

How many fraternal meetirgs were attended by one
or riore members of the family during the year ?
How many co-operative mertings were attended by
oneor more mneribers of the family during the year ?
How many social functions were attended by one or
more members of the family during the year ?

Fow many picture shows were attended during theyear?
How many days were spent by one or more riembers

of the family in hunting, fishing or camping ?



23. How many magazines are read in the home ?
24, Ho many dally papers are read in the home ?
25, Fow many books are read by the family during

the year ?



HAPTER II
HISTORICAL BACKGRCUND OF TIE COLLUNITY

Indian Tradition

The name of the Daginaw velley was derived from an
Indian word, O-Sauk-e-ncn, meaning the land of the Sauks,
Tradition has it that, criginally, the northeastern part
of Michigan was inhabited by a warlike tribe of Indians
known by that name, vho were much at war with the Chip-
pewes on the llorth, the Pottawatomies on the South,
and with other nations of Canada. Finally a council
wés held on lMackinaw Island consisting of Chippewas,
Pottawatomies, llenomenes, (¢t awas and the six trites of
Iroquois. They proceeded from there to the land of the
Sauks, attacked them in their villages and massacred
all of them that could te found. They, then agreed to
use the territory as acommon hunting ground. . So many
who came to this plece to hunt never returned that the
Indians came to believe that the grounds were haunted
by the snirits of the dead Sauks., It is probable that
the few Sauks who survived the massacre and their des-
cendents were responsible for these disapnearences.,

There is an Indian legend which anpears to have ori-
ginated from the fact that in 142 a white owl was shot

in a lone tree a short distance north west of Bay City.



The Indians believed trat the owl was a spirit bird.
They said that an old chief, Sauk-e-non, had sent the
bird to watch over tre neowle. But, after the bird had
been killed, ;he white peonle drove'the Indians from
treir hunting ground.
After vhite peonle tegan to :igrate here from De-

“troit and liew York, several treaties were entered into
with the Indiznsthrough vhich trliey were gradually dis-
possedsed of their hunting grounds., The first of these
treaties was obtained by William Iull, the territorial
governor, in 1607, In 1819,0eneral Cass negotiated an-
cther treaty with the Indians by which they ceeded to
the United States all of the Saginaw re -ion excevt forty
thousand acres wrich was reserved to them as a hunting
ground. And, in 1837, the date of llichigan's admissicn
to the union, this last tract of land was ceeded to the

United States after which the Indians rapidly disapneared.

Organization of Townships

All of that territory surrounding Saginaw Bay and
including thre valleys of lower Saginaw, Kawkawlin, Pin-
conning, Pine, Rifle, AuGres and Guanicassee rivers wvas

organized into Bay County by act of the legislature 18557,
(1) R. E. Page, History of Bay County 1E(3,



Their first election vas held in June of that year and the
following officers were elected : William Simon, sherif?f ;
Tlijah Catlin, clerk ; James Vatson, treasurer ; Thomas Bleigh
register of deeds ; S, S. Campbell, judce of probvate ; C. H,
Freeman, prosecuting attorney ; Stepren Vright, circocurt court
comniseioner ; Benjamin Partridge, surveyor and William Spicer,
coroner; all of vhom were duly installed. Sagzinaw, however,
protested as Saginaw and iidland Counties rad teen exercieing
judicial power over the wiole region und tieir representatives
rad only consented to the lezislative enactment after it had
been so amended as to nullify the bill acording to their
opinion., The collecticn of taxes by the officers of tre

newly created county offered an ovportunity to test the legal-
ity of its organization before tre courts., In 1853, the de-
cision was handed down by the Btate Supreme Court that Bay
Courty rad been culy and lecally organized,

The surveying of this vart of the state was started in
1840and, 1n 1£75, Iosco and Ogemaw Counties were set off.
Ogemaw was, evidently, taken from the name of the Indian
chiel Ogenaw-gegoto, who did most of the talking for the
Indians in the negotiations with General Cass wren ike treaty
of 1919 was signed.

In 1674, Toffit and ilason tovnshipsin Arenac County
vere organized and nany of the early settlers of Richland

towmship first settled in the Arenac tovnships but soon



moved on farther north ii. search of better onvortunities,
liaple Ridge was wubout the Tirst settle:ent in any of these
townsiips. The village vas given its name by William Swith
who started it, .ir. Smith's brother who cane a little later
still resides = little way north of ..aple Rid;se corners.

As previously menticned, the soil in *re southeastern part
of the county is more fertile than tre rest which fact, no

duubt, accounts for the name of the township of Richland,

Jarly Settlers

Vhite traders visited the regicon as early as 17392,
The first one is said to l:ave been a .r. Trombley, a gold
sitith, o made trinkets for and traded with tie Indians.
Gassette Tromoley was, for some time, e.iployed by the gov-
ernitent to teach the Indians thne art of agriculture. Iliis
ovn statements on the subject indicate trat Iie made very
little progress. Jacob Graverot, anotiier of the early traders
is creditedby soice reports, with the honor of being the
first setiller in this part of lLiichigan. By others, lLeon
Trombley, who settled in Lower Sazinav (now Ray City) in
1931, is credited with that honor. I'e vas soon followed by
others and the sveculaticns during Jacksons aduinistration

did rmuch to stimulate this imaigration,
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The first settler of what is now Ilichland Tovmshin
apnears to have been ..r, Ilenry Craner wrno nome steaded
ore hundred sixty acres in the tovnship in 1866, In 1870
lIr., Pitt Blackmuan cane to Ogemav County znd purchased
forty acres from !‘r., Craner btut in 18§ he again sold it
to Iir. Franklin Pierce und noved onto a homestead at the
present site of Prescott., In 1£79, :ir, Pierce succeeded
in having kichland set ofi from Alabas-er Township to
vhich it ha? been attached. He becamne tlie first treasurer
of the tovnship with Ilavoleon Scott zs supervisor, Hugene
Yilcox as clerk, Tilliam ‘oore as ri~srway commissioner,
and “ortinier lloble as justice of the peace. The *owvnsntio
thien included vrat is now 11ills as well as the present
townsrip of Richland, [iills was set off as a separate
tovniship about twenty five years ago, tren reunited for
a s:ort time and is now a separate townsrip once more,

Ammong ti:e others wio hepped to make the early
history of the com.unity vas Abram Scott who settled
on a farm in Richland in 1870. 1In 1880, “'r., Scott
erected the first store building in llaple Ridre, Iis
widow is s8till gquite hale and resides with Ler daughter

in Prescott. ..rs Scott still recalls the recalls the tiie



Ce L e

when her husband walked and blazed the trail through
the wilderness from his home in Richland to the vil-
lage of Alabaster, a distance of between twenty and
thirty miles, to secure the organization of district
number one of Richland. Later lMrs. Scott taught in
the school though she was not the first teacher. The
first school building and the one in which Mrs., Scott
taught is still standing but was moved a little way
west of its original site to make room for a larger
and better structure. The building was mnoccupied for
meny years but, in 1933, it was repaired and used dur-

ing the year for a residence.

HOM I OF ABRAM SCOTT. BUILT IN 1878.




George Eymer was born in VWisconsin in 1%52 but,
while still young, was taken by his parents to New
York State where he attended a rural school winters
and worked on a farm summers., In 1°74, he and an-
other young man of his own age, named Perry, landed
in Bay County with a gun and three dollars in money
each. George Eymer located at Manle Ridge where he
started teaching school but soon purchased trhe For-
est House Hotel in Sterling. A little later, he and
a lir. Hanlin started another hotel at Camp Six which
was afterward called Prescott. In 1878 he bought a
small sawrdll which he overated for two years, then
he s0ld this and erected a larger mill with a circle
saw. In 1083, he moved his mill to Prescott and, the
same year, was elected supervisor of Richland fown-
ship. He started a general store in 1790 and some-
what later added a hardware stock. He was married
to Miss Bell Munroe on July the fourth 1879 to which
union two children were born, Grace and Harry. Irs,
FEymer died on January seventh 1888 and in July 1789
Yre Eymer married Katy Franks who left one daughter,
lrs. Blanche Eymer Coffey, now residing at Long
Beach California. After the death of his second wife,
which occurred on July twenty third 1907, lir. Eymer
was married for the third time in 1909, this time to

HMrs, Carry Weeks of West Branch., Ilr. Eymer passed a-



way October twenty sixth 1926, His widow has since
married and maintains a home in Prescott.

ir. Robert Cliff came to Ogemaw wounty with his
father in 1879 and to Prescott Commnity in 1880. He
erected a shingle mill at Johnson Lake which he later
moved to Prescott Village and, in 1894, he added a
sawmill., Ir, Cliff relates that at the age of twelve
to fourteen years he learned to be a shingle sawyer,
working in his father's mill along with the men, He
states that in the ovperation of his own mill there was
a considerable length of time that they used very lite
tle money, most of the business transactions being car-
ried out by barter., lir. Cliff has been a member of the
township board or of the school board much of the time
since moving here and still holds the position of secre-
tary of the Board of Education of the Prescott Schools,

Still another early prioneer who is still in active
business is Mr. Henry Zeran, ILr. Zeran wus first ap-
pointed vostmaster of the Prescott office Ly President
Harrison. In 1896, he suffered a severe financial loss
in the destruction by fire of both stores which he had
established. The next year he rebuilt and was again
appointed postmaster by President lcKinley which posi-
tion he held until the change in party control at the

election of President Wilson. In 1£97, he started the



business which he continues to ovnerate, From 1913
to 1918, he was also oronrietor of a hotel known as
Rice and Zeran, Trom 1004 until the time of the e-
rection of the present school building, }r. Zeran
was treasurer of the school Dboard.

The neigiiborhoods included witiin ihie comiaunity
have largely result=¢ fro: these early settlerents.
As mentioned above, lLiaple Ridge seems to have teen
settled first and to have takem tre lead for a tine,.
The County Iine lLeiglrorhood near thrhe corner of Cge=-
maw, Iosco and Arenac was established socn after I'aple
Fidge. The early settlers of County Line socn estab-
lisrked a church and organized tie first school dist-
rict in Ricrland Townsnip. Tkis neighborhood still
shiows a great deal of solidarity and is quite thioroughi-
ly segregate i from surrounding neignborhoods., In add-
ition to tre clurch and scrocl, they rave a nei:hborhond
telephone line and central. The Johnson Lake neighbor-
hood started around a sawmill. The neigrrborhood still
nairtains an identity tliough about the cnly uniting in-
fluence is now the nrimary school district. The Push
Lake neighborhood is vrotatly atvo t the least united

of att, In fact, it may be questioned as to whether it



should te called a neigrovsrhood., It is located in lills
tovnship and contains peonle of several nationalities and
religions. The priumary school is about the only unifying
factor. Iiost of Logan tovmship except the northwestern
part :l1ay be considersd as a neigiibtorhood, since it con-
tains a country store, primary scrools and a telepnone
line., The soﬁthwestern porticn of Burleigh Township con-
tains a neignhborhocd around a primary schiool. The settle-
nent around Sage and St¥ylus Lake form still another neigh-

berkood.,



CHAPTEX III

BUSINZSS ENTYRPRISES

Tumbering

Yhile some of the early settlers of Prescott
Community came with the idea of homesteading land
and carving out farm homes, most of them were at-
tracted by the valuable forests of virgin tiuber
as was true in nearly all of northern :lichigan,
Some of the comdanies who helped lumber this ter-
ritory were: The Keystone Comnany, C. . Eddy,
Murphy and Dorr, Moffit, Pitts and Crange, Hale
and Prescott, . and B, lills, Sage and .icGraw,
and Johnson and Wilder. iiost of these companies
floated the logs down the streams to Saginow or
Bay City where the 1ills were located and com-
bined the szwing with the salt industry. The
cut of lumber for one mill per year reached
twenty eight to thirty willion feet. On lNov-
ember ninth 1767, Sage and icGraw made a test
run for twelve hours and in that time their mill
cut 370,797 feet of lumber. Loore Smith and Conm-

pany are said to have been the first to float logs



down the Rifle River. Their mill had been built in
1854 and was bought by them in 1850,

lost of those who did homestead or buy farms,
worked in the lumberwoods during the winters and,
after the logs had been driven down thke rivers to tie
mills in the spring, they spent the sumners clear-
ing land arddcaring for crops. While the men and ocl-
der boys were in the lumber camnps, the resnonsibili-
ty of doing chores, getting up rood and caring for

the home, rested on the wives and younger children,

lierchantile Establishments

One of the first businesses to locate in the
cormmunity was a hotel and saloon, Peter Hanlin was
part owner and was the manager. The hotel was locatdd
at the nresent site of the l'cKay home in Prescott.
This one vas started in 1783 and soon others came un-
til there were three located here. Illany stories are
told of the brawls in which men's noses vere rubbed
with lighted cigars, heads singed with lighted candles,
windows and furniture smashed and men battered up in

general, The saloons are gone but the wisdom of the



village 1s now passed around the card tables cf the villace
nool room which has taken the place of the saloons as ‘the
"Poor lian's Clubd",

The store built by IIr. Scott in llavle Ridge is still
in operation and carries on a general merchantile business,
There secms to be some confusicn as to when and by whom the
first store in Prescott was started., 3By some of the residents
it is claimed tl.at the first store was started by Willian
oore at the site of the present Stoner building. The business
was soon sold to lir, Weinberg -nd still later a store and
salonon was operated at that place., It was known as the Worn
Yole because of the numerous small additions which rad been
added on irregularly. 3By other residents it is clai:aed that
the first store was onened in a tent located wnhere the .iallory
and Com:uion Store now stands. Iir. Weinberg had come to the
location as a hous~ to house salesman but ; after buyving the
‘loore Store, he prosper=2d and exvnanded the business until
he had established a chain of stores., TFive of them are still
in overation under the manarceisent of his son Sam. DBesides
tne one at Prescott there are four in near by villaces.

The drugs store ~hich :'r., Zeran started in 1£.97 and
which he'still continues to manage, Tas a direct follow up
of his seneral store started earlier., In addition to the
drug business, he operates a hotel business, accom odating

transciesnts to both ronsas and t ble board.



The ZTymer Department Store vhich was started
by Mr. George Ey:er is now under the ovnership and
managenent of his son, Harry Eymer. I'e carries stocks
of fresh meats, groceries =and hardware.

The llallory and Commcn Company first built and
operated a hotel in Prescott in 1915 but, the next
year, they sold to ilr. Richard Weishuhn and, in 1:20,
they bought the store of iir. Corey Stoughtonberg
which they have continued to operate to the present
excent for one year which they spent in Caro. Their
store was first located in the Stoner Building from
whence it was moved to its present location.

anbout the year 1¢00, Lir, Sinmon Charmnaigne pur-
chased & heargse and undertaking ecuinment and operned
a mortusry at Prescott. Lir. Champalgne operated the
business for twelve years whren he sold to Ir, Jud,
TJittle vho afded a stock of furniture and still con-
tinues the business, lLir. Champaigne operated the lo-
cal telephone exchange for a time but is now retired
from active business though he still holds the vnosi-
tions of devuty sheriff and merber of the Board cof
Zducation,

Blacksmnithing was an i.mortant business

from the lumbering days until the comuaon use of the



autoniobile, There is still a blacksiaith shop in tle
village but, because of tle scarcity of that kind of
work, the blacksmiitn is employed in ti:e shon only
part time,

There vias a harness and shoe renair shon started
about 19C0 at the present site of the "rescott Eleva-
tor by llr. Claude lLiarsaw and Iir. Jack Frost. As the
automobtile industry increased the harness business
decreased and a stock of shoes vas substituted for the
harnesgses., Then the vartnership was dissolved, the
managenent passed to ilr, Liarsaw and the business was
roved to its present site. About 1926, Iir. liarsaw
died leaving the business to his widow and children

vho continue its operation.

Banks

The first benk was established bty James ilcKay in
1908 and still enjoys a wide patr nage. About fcur
years after the first bunk was established, a second
one was orqcanized by lir, Weinberé and placed under the
managemnent of his son Jacob. The bank was known es
the Farmrer's and llerchant's Exchange Bank but closed
its doors in *farch 1931 and the First National Bank

of Bay City was appointed as receiver. The latter



banks also becaine insolvent but has been reorganized. As
has been true in nearly all such caces, the faliure has
had a bad effect on the finances of the vhole com mnity as

well as oproducing much bitterness of feeling., Ilany nad
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all theilr savings in the closed banks and, with the decline,
in the price of tieir products, were unable to pay taxes or
purchase the necessities of life, The townslip of Richlaind
lost twelve thousand dollars in *the benk failure and was
oblized to bond for five thousand dollars to pay the school
districts for treir share of the tax money which was in-
cluded in the loss and which was still ir the name of the
tovnship treasurer.

Turing the existence of the two banks, ti.ey served zs
nuclei around vhich were grouped two business factions .
The two banks sponsored rivals for :e.bers of the voard of
education and other volitical positions which might add
prestise to the respective banks or offer econoiaic advan-
tase. This had a strong disintegrating influence on the
comunity. While tl:e two factions still exist,itis to be
hoved that the fact tnat one bank lias teen eliminated may
help to heal over the division in the comunity =hen the

harm done by the bank failure has been forzotten.



Garages

The first vnerscn to engage in the garage busi-
ness in Prescott was Mr. Orville Leslie vho recalls
the time when he measured out gz8 with a quart mea-
sure., He first ovened business in an old wuilding
then standing on nain stireet. Fro.a there re noved
into an 0ld blacks.iith shoo and, in 1317, built tle
frent pert of his present building, finislkings it in
1922,

Tre next to enter the garsge business wus lir,
Laurel lLaw who occupied tiie vacuted blocks.dith shop
before ..r. Leslie secired it, I!'r. Law erected a new
twilding wiien re discovered that the slon had been
sold to lr., leslie. lir, Law snent soire ti.ie as :.e-
chanic in a garage in Detroit during which time the

~e

local garage was run by *ir. Bisbing but, in 1:32, Iir,
Law returned and tle two controlled the business as
partners for about a ye=zr vhen iir, ILaw again left
the garage under the managerment of lir. Bisbing. A
third garage was built in 1.30 by lir. J anes lcKay.
This is now the Chevrolet agency and is opnerated by
an employed nanager,
The first dance hall was built in 1£93 by Iir.

1111 am Henry who had coite tc Richland Townshin in

1890 to work in the luwber woods. lir, lenry later



established a barbershoo —hich he onerated for several years,
At present lir. Yenry 1s janitor of th~ village schocl. There
are now two barber siopns in the village.

Sales figures were not availables for tie various mercnan-
tile establishiients of Prescott but the averages for Ogemaw
County for the year 1929, as taken from the United States Cen-
sus report, in the wvarious ~onterp.-ises -ere as follows;

| TABLZ II
Grocery Stores witlout :1€2L8) v . cercrvensnseess.iv 26,300

Grocery Stores (with 11€3t8) e euviversnssnsnesnssss 14,000
General StOYeS seieeeeseecessssncssssssansssnssnss. 43,500
T0tOT S8lES cereccecrsssssctesncscscansssssscsnssesses 50,220
Tilling Stations seveeeeveeeeescecesensceeeaassssss 11,800
GATBGEES  eeeverseossssesssessscsesssostsssssosssossons 9,000
TULNLEUTE  evevereveeeosnsoccasasasssssossassssessess 135,000
STNOBS e veensvennoassnssososssanssssensnessennes 9,600
Lumber and Building !‘aterial seeevececsessoscscesees 55,500
FATAWATE 4veuveeronenoessosannsssensnsnssnnasnsases 17,600

Drugs @ @ 0 0. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 P O 0 OO OO0 PO 0 G000 0L OO 0N e 0 16’200
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